
  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us 

DATE: May 16, 2019 

TIME: 5:00 p.m. 

PLACE: McLaughlin University Center 
 Sienna Heights University Campus 
 Adrian, Michigan 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Comment [3-MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of Agenda [ACTION] 

4. Meeting Minutes 

Approval of the Minutes of the April 18, 2019, 2019, Meeting [ACTION]  ..........................................  3 

5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) 

(1) #19-05 — Woodstock Township [ACTION]  ....................................................................  5 

(2) #19-06 — Adrian Township [ACTION] ..........................................................................  19 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s) 

(1) #19-17 — Riga Township [ACTION]  .............................................................................  39 

(2) #19-18 — Palmyra Township [ACTION]  .......................................................................  55 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s) — None 

6. Other Business 

a. Old Business — None 

b. New Business — None 

7. Public Comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner Comment 

9. Adjournment 

 

 

The next meeting of the Lenawee County Planning Commission 
(and its Annual Dinner) is scheduled for July 18, 2019 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 1 

mailto:gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us


This page is intentionally blank. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 2 



  
www.region2planning.com/lenawee-county-planning-commission 

 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, May 16, 2019 

Old Lenawee County Courthouse ● 2nd Floor Commission Chambers ● Adrian, Michigan 

 Members Present: Mr. Bob Behnke, Education Representative; Ms. Karol (KZ) Bolton, Lenawee 
County Commission; Mr. Keith Dersham, LCPC Secretary; Mr. Bruce Nickel; 
Mr. Ralph Tillotson, Lenawee County Commission; and Mr. Dale Witt 

 Members Absent: Ms. Rebecca Liedel, LCPC Chair 

 Others Present: Mr. Grant Bauman, LCPC Staff/Recording Secretary 

Item 1 Call to order. The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Secretary Dersham. Those in 
attendance rose and joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item 2 Public comment — None 

Item 3 Approval of Agenda. Staff submitted the 5/16/19 meeting agenda for approval. 

A motion was made by Comm. Bolton, and seconded by Comm. Behnke, to approve the May 
16, 2019, meeting agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 4 Approval of Minutes. Staff submitted the 04/18/19 meeting minutes for approval. 

A motion was made by Comm. Behnke, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to approve the April 
18, 2019, meeting minutes as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 5 Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) — None 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s) 

(1) #19-14 | Blissfield Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement for 
a property (ID# BL0-206-4300-00) along Blissfield Highway in Blissfield Township 
(Section 6 (T7S-R5E)). Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners to recom-
mend approval of the agreement to the Blissfield Township Board of Trustees (see 
the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Bolton, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to recom-
mend approval. The motion passed unanimously. 

(2) #19-15 | Deerfield Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed partial release 
from an expired agreement for a property (ID# DE0-209-1200-00) along Forche Road 
in Deerfield Township (Section 9 (T7S-R4E)). The release of the farmstead will also 
extend the agreement on the remainder of the property. Staff summarized his report 
advising Commissioners to recommend approval of the release to the Lenawee 
County Board of Commissioners (see the staff report). Comm. Tillotson noted that 
the applicant will likely have to pay a penalty. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 3 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
May 16, 2019, Meeting Minutes Page 2  
 

A motion was made by Comm. Bolton, and seconded by Comm. Behnke, to recom-
mend approval with comments (see the staff report and these minutes). The motion 
passed unanimously. 

(2) #19-16 | Palmyra Township. Commissioners reviewed a proposed agreement for 
a property (ID# PA0-101-1550-00) along Grosvenor Highway in Palmyra Township 
(Section 1 (T7S-R4E)). Staff summarized his report advising Commissioners to recom-
mend approval with comments of the agreement to the Palmyra Township Board 
(see the staff report). 

A motion was made by Comm. Bolton, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to recommend 
approval with comments (see the staff report). The motion passed unanimously. 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s) — None 

Item 6 Other Business 

a. Old Business 

(1) 2019 LCPC Annual Dinner. Staff announced that the speakers for the event have 
been secured. 

b. New Business — None 

Item 7 Public Comment — None 

Item 8 Commissioner Comment — None 

Item 9 Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned at 6:50 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Grant E. Bauman, Recording Secretary 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 4 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-05 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: June 20, 2019 

 Proposal: Rezoning of property in Woodstock Township 

Purpose 

The purpose of the rezoning request is to allow “a land split resulting in two parcels for single-family res-
idential use”, according to the applicant (see the Township’s ‘Application for Zoning Changes’). It was 
also noted that the proposed use of the site is ‘residential/storage’ (see the ‘Rezoning Worksheet 
Form’).1 

Location and Size of the Property 

Location – The subject property (WD0-136-1550-00) is located at 7675 Hallenbeck Highway in Section 
36 (T5S-R1E) of Woodstock Township. The property is situated in the southeast corner of the intersec-
tion of US-223 and Hallenbeck Highway (see Figures 1, 4a, and 4b). 

Size – The subject property has an area of approximately 3.7 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – The current use of the subject property is residential, according to the Township 
(see the Rezoning Worksheet Form). Each of the surrounding properties contain a combination of agri-
cultural and residential uses. 

Future Land Use – Woodstock Township’s future land use map places the subject property and sur-
rounding parcels in an area recommended for ‘Agricultural’ uses (see Figure 2). 

Current Zoning – The subject property and surrounding parcels are located in an ‘Agricultural (AG)’ 
district (see Figure 3). 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Public Road/Street Access – The subject property fronts US-223, part of the state trunkline system, 
and Hallenbeck Highway, a county local roadway (see Figure 4b). 

Public Water and Sewer – Neither public sanitary sewer service or pubic water service is available on 
the subject property and there are no plans to provide those services. 

Environmental Constraints – There are no known environmental constraints, according to the Town-
ship (see the ‘Rezoning Worksheet Form’). 

                                                 
1 Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change, making the proposed use impractical. All of the uses allowed under the proposed zoning 
are pertinent. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 5 



Page 2 CZ #19-05 
 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Woodstock Township Planning Commis-
sion recommends approval of the proposed rezoning (see the background information). 

CZC Staff Analysis – Woodstock Township has a Zoning Plan which includes the following criteria upon 
which a rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

No. The subject property is located in the midst of a large area recommended for ‘Agricultural’ 
uses (see Figure 2). The Zoning Plan equates the ‘Rural Non-Farm (RNF)’ zoning district to the 
‘Low-Density Residential’ future land use area identified on the Future Land Use map. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. Although the Zoning Plan equates ‘RNF’ zoning to ‘Low-Density Residential’ areas, there is 
an existing ‘RNF’ district located further to the southeast along US-223 (see Figure 3). 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. It is unlikely that public services or facilities will be negatively impacted by the proposed 
change in zoning. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. There is already a mix of agricultural and residential uses in the general area of the rezoning 
request. The big difference is the minimum lot size for single-family dwelling in the ‘RNF’ district 
is only 1 acre, compared to 2 acres in the ‘AG’ district. 

CZC Staff Analysis – Staff agrees with the Woodstock Township Planning Commission’s recommenda-
tion to approve the rezoning request. However, the Township’s Zoning Plan should be amended to 
equate the ‘Rural Non-Farm (RNF)’ zoning district to the ‘Agricultural’ future land use category. 

CZC Staff Recommendation – Based upon this analysis, staff ad-
vises the Lenawee County Planning Commission to recommend AP-
PROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the proposed ‘Rural Non-Farm (RNF)’ 
rezoning to the Woodstock Township Board: 

 Amend the Zoning Plan to equate the ‘Rural Non-Farm (RNF)’ 
zoning district to the ‘Agricultural’ future land use category. 

  

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 6 



Page 3 CZ #19-05 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Figure 2 
Township Future Land Use 

 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 7 



Page 4 CZ #19-05 
 

Figure 3 
Township Zoning 

 

Figure 4a 
Aerial Photo 

 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 8 



Page 5 CZ #19-05 
 

Figures 4b 
Google Photo 

 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 9 



*-mit YyzWUULCD iuu\ i uwiNbi-iirDJL / O^^b l b

Lcpccase #:
ffortWO«0/iW ZONING AMEN0MFNT FORMI

LENAWEE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
(COORDINATING ZONING)

Return to:LenaweeCounty PlanningCommission* c/oRegion 2 Planning Commission *120 W.Michigan Avenue*Jackson,Michigan 49201
Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits theCommission used to makes its recommendation with thisform. Use
o separateformfor each proposed sonlng change. Please include a legal description/ survey with reeoning reguests in addition to the Parcel ID Number.
A copy of thisform with the tCPC recommendation will be moiled back to the Clerk,who will return a copy to the LCPC with the Township Board Action.

TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to theTHE1/
Lenawee County Planning Commission for its review,comment,and recommendation:
(ANSWER CITHER A or B)
A. DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING);

(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Numberfs), the number of acres,and thesection(s) in which the
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed, Attach a map showing all changes and additions.)
fx ]~hn ~ R /̂ / <rs7>n/0
5r£ Isb

A~6c1, The above described propetfy-has a proposed zoning change FROM
ZONE TO ~ KL /77 j°r( /1/

2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE:

ULU
ZONtf

B. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT:
The following Article(s) and Sectfcm(s) is amended or altered: ARTICLE _____
The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attack additional sheets if more space Is needed.)

SECTION

na
Z-TL Li' * *"

C. PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on: month QCi
D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was published/mailed on the following date: month (DOS

(Notice must be provided at leastfifteen days prior to the public hearing.)
day year

32/Sdav / 77 year

E. THE NEWSPAPER (having general circulation in Township) carrylng the NOTICE: A'JfpJtfflJ
The PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Pfenning CommWidn and will be
forwarded to theTownship Board with a recommendation to^^APPROVE or DISAPPROVE.IH' VL (JjRjl Jxfchair or Secretary O(o l 0 1̂ / (enter date)
LENAWEE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION(LCPC) ACTION;
1. Date of Meeting: month day year

2. The LCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and:
flRecommends APPROVAL of the zoning change
I I Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter.
I~lRecommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments, as stated In the attached letter.

Takes NO ACTION, f
Recording Secretary (enter date)

TOWNSHIP HOARD ACTION:
1, Date of Meeting: month
2. The

day year
, Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and that

the proposed amendment Q PASSED, DID NOT PASS,or was REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission.
Township Clerk

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 10 



rH«L mzwuuuo i UKJ\\ IuwMonj.rUJL f U H t 401OU O l U /DO/ 11/ ZUJ.

LCPC Case #:
(For iCPC U$t Only)

LENAWEE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
(COORDINATING ZONING)

Rewrnto:Lenawee County Planning Commission * c/o Region 2 Planning Commission •120 W. Michigan Avenue * Jackson,Michigan 49201
Please submit with the "Zoning Amendment Form"far a district boundary change (reivnlngl not a text amendment.

Township of: ) OC jC
Township official we may yfifT' llj
Applicant: FSFr\]y/y

IsulL 1°)Township Case #:_ Phone #:(^T/7 I
Phone ti: (5~7? -S&F?

QuarterSection(s): ONE DSW SE
Legs) Description and/or Survey Map/Tax Map (please attach) ^Yes No [ Please do not use snk the Parcel ID Number )

From:
5ection($);

LSI <̂ i±L.i
Rezoning Request;

Properly Location:

Parcel Si2 fi ( i/more than one parcel, label "A" - *Z*):

Please attach location map $ to No ,
What is the existinguse of the site? p^o U \ A~ 1 —
What Is the proposed use of the site?

What are the surrounding uses (e,g.>agriculture, single-family residential, highway commercial, etc)? t

North: / 'FjCSjdpji ) / / J South: AQFJCJI./TI/M^ irtfs f V j r t r '
_ / */&.</FZAFJJ/9{ T West:East:

What are thf surrounding Zoning Districts?
North; k,sM _

A—frq'W^LJUiU,
f\ <?FUfr ; JCJISA

Will it he made available? Yes jSNo If yes,when?
Will it be made available? Yes jS'No If yes, when?

jĴ Yes No If ves, name f/ft / JC /
Yes ^[NO

Soll(s)

ikiT( _A6ri tjoCJi' Â Ls
'jSfcj.iL- i MM, , , ,*'

South:

ite:) iM=iWest;
What is the suggested use of the site on the Township's Land Use Plan map?
Is municipal water currently available? Yes No
)s municipal sewer currently available? Yes j)Q No
Does the site have access to a public street or road?
Are there any known environmental constraints on the site?

Brownfieldjs}

East;

2(t.
US DO"s

Floodplain(s)Wetland(s )

Other (please specify)

Please attach the minutes of the Planning Commission.
ySjes, the minutes are attached.
Please attach copies of any reports, exhibits or other documented provided to the Planning Commission.
I^Yes, copies of documentation are attached.
Please attach any public comments, letters, or petitions.

Yes,public comments are attached.

No,the minutes are not attached.
No, copies of documentation are not attached.

S^FJO, public comments are not attached

Please Include any additional Information or comments as an attachment.

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 11 



KW/NSUIP OF WOODSTOCK LENAWEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN APPLICATION NO,

Application for Zoning Changes
PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE ( use back of application if more space is needed)
1. Application is hereby made by:Name(s): _ HetJ -i IU , A . __

Address: (7%, Telephone: £ l 7 450 57XS9to obtain a change in zoning,

2. The applicants) is /are: (}jQ the owner(s) of the property involved. acting on behalf of the owners) of the property involved.
3. Address of property involved: 74»75* H f^ l\>Y<

4. Legal description: LOPf> 1*7 *70 &O

m Pr/J / rcu- /Hi

POLL. LE& PIL. T7£&C- ( 6TIPM F̂ TTAC4H£P
5. The above property is presently zoned: Al^6. The proposed use(s) and nature(s) of operation is/are £ TO M F " -Fbtt- THE.

O'? f K C J^O i K-£ ft LAMP iypi-1-r Rg&tLL-TiM^ I fa “TPUn
‘&tnJ4> ue. 1^7* 11.^ 'RgS* IL*£A?TflL- UfeC- ,

NOTE: ATTACH ANACCURATESURVEYDRAWINGOF SAID PROPERTY.

4- Ife -Date: Applicants):
signattffta*.

ture
Fee Received Township ClerkiS I \ ^-1-signaturc

PLANNING COMMISSION

The Township Zoning Board, having reviewed the submitted data, do hereby recommend that the Township Board ^5^Approven Disapprovethe rezoning for the following reasons:

fc.A /Wg fkeJuin
signature

Chairman:Date:

CERTIFICATE OF ZONING CHANGE:
The Township Board, having reviewed the submitted data and the recommendation by the Zoning Board, do hereby Approve

PH Disapprovethe zoning change for the following reasons:

Date: Supervisor:
signature

Clerk:6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 12 



WOODSTOCK TOWNSHIP
PLANNING COMMISSION

6486 Devils Lake Hwy
Addison, Ml 49220

June 4, 2019
Planning Commission Meeting
Attendees: J. Burke, D. Crawford, M. Cure, R. Kennard, J. Josephs, J. Nicholl, R. TurnerAbsent: None

Chairman Mel Cure brought meeting to order at 6:00pm followed by the pledge of allegiance.
A, New Business

1. This public hearing is in regards to a request for rezoning the property located at7675 Hallenbeck Hwy (WDO-136-1550-00). Applicant is requesting property berezoned to Rural Non-Farm (RNF) from Agriculture (AG-1) for the purpose ofacquiring a land spilt, resulting In two (2) parcels for single family residential use.
2. Letter of Correspondence

I. None

3. Current owner of property statement indicated current plan is to spilt property into 2
parcels for the use of single family residence

i. Owner bought property years ago to use for garden space and storage but
is nearing retirement and will be likely be moving to use as permanent
housing

ii, Currently, property has a manufactured home, garage and bam on site
Hi. Owner has researched property details and found with current Township

Assessor property wasn’t zoned correctly
iv. Requesting rezoning in order to split property to move forward with parcel

of house and garage leaving other parcel with barn only

4. Motion made by R. Kennard to recommend to the Township Board that the
property be zoned to Rural Non-Farm (RNF) from Agriculture (AG) as the site has
been presented with application, 2nd by R. Turner

A

i. Roll Call: D, Crawford - Yes, J. Burke- Yes, R, Kennard- Yes, R. Turner-
Yes, J. Nicholl- Yes, J, Josephs- Yes, M. Cure- Yes. Motion passes

ii. All documentation will be passed on to Township Board for next steps

Meeting was adjourned at 6:13 pm.
Chairman Mel Cure has reviewed and approved these minutes.
Respectfully submitted by
J. Josephs, Recording Secretary

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 13 



rnvac. vuw u u u o i i u w n o n i r1 f O H R O l OgO/iX/^iD V O l O i

]

ChicagoTide InsuranceCompany

Commitment Number PR-170894
EXHBFTA

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
!

The land referred to in thisCommitment isdescribed asfollows:
Land intheTbwnshipof Woodstock, Countyof Lenawee,State of Michigan, described®follows:
All that part of the Northwest t/4 of Section 38.Town 6South, Rang©1East,describedascommencingon theWestlineofSection 36, aforesaid, at point located 777,75feet North 00* 3ff 00"East from theWest1/4 corner of saidSection 38,andrunning thence North 00° 3500"East alongsaid line 341.82 feet thenceSouth 89s25' 00"East 200.0 feet thence North 00” 35*
03'East353.22feet tothecentolineof Highway US-223;thenceSouth SO4 5900' Eastsiongsaid centerline216.05feetthenoeSouth 00“ 18* 00'West 560.74 feet thence North 89“ 25100"Wtest 371.44 feet tothe pointof beginning.EXCEPTING THEREFROM land described as beinga partof the Northwest 1/4 of Section 36,Town 5South, Range1 Eastfurther described as commencing attheWest1/4comer of Section 36; thenoe North 00s 35* 00’ East along thecenterlineofHallenbeck Highway1120.85feet (record 1119.57 feet}; thence South89"26M1"East (recordSouth89“ 25' 00" East), 199.91feet (record 200.00 feet) fora pointof beginning; thenoe North 00“ 35'00"East364,51 feet(record 353.22 feet)to toecenterlineof Highway US-223; thenceSouth 50“ 59* 00'East along saidcenterline 38.30feet thenceSouth 00°35’00"West 330.69 feet;
therms North 89“ 2611"West30.00feet to the point of beginning.

I

ALTA COfnfpHmOfit
exKfcftA (t*fr17DM4PFOFW 7O0WI?)

i

I

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 14 



rncin uoWUUL>D i uut\ i uwmn1r31 f 34 f 4010UO/I I/ ^UJLO uo;of

** •.

MHiisawmmwM
Woodstock Township Planning Commission
6486 Devils Lake Hwy
Addison. Ml 49220
517.547.6598

i

Zoning/Ordinance Administrator’s Report
Application for Zoning Change

7675 Hallenbeck Hwy, WDQ-136-1550-00
Applicants; Theodore A. (Ted) and Rochelle

5885 Tower Dr.
Manitou Beach.Ml 49253
517.490.5089

Proposed Uses
Rezone to Rural Nonfarm for the purpose of acquiring a land split, resulting in two (2) parcels for
single family residential use.

Property History
7/30/1994- ZCP for garage, granted.
6/8/2007- ZCP for pole barn, granted.
8/28/2008- ZCP for deck, granted.
10/4/2017- ZCP for dwelling addition, gra

Attachments
2016 Pictometry view of WDQ-136-1550-00

Report Prepared
5/9/2019

' « »»v f «*»«J

Jeff Votzke
Zoning/Ordinance Administrator

Cc
Planning Commission Members
Applicant
file

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 15 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 16 



WWf ^ f — w w t » » IWI (A

Aerial Map

sa v1 v
:

2*

H!

MR

.i-

map canter:41’59' 48.39. -84* 15’ S5.94

36-5S-1E
Lenawee County

MichiganIBPsurety*
AgriaifeiK.aoift WWW.Aaritaaine.ocm

4/22/201d
6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 17 



This page is intentionally blank. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 18 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-06 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: March 21, 2018 

 Proposal: Text Amendments Regarding ‘Solar Energy Facilities’ to the Adrian Township 
Zoning Ordinance 

The Adrian Township Planning Commission developed a series of text amendments regulating ‘Solar En-
ergy Facilities’. The amendments can be described as follows: 

 The addition of regulations regarding ‘Large Solar Energy Facilities’ as Sec. 6.49. 

 The addition of regulations regarding ‘Small Solar Energy Facilities’ as Sec. 5.13 (or Sec. 6.50). 

 The addition of definitions regarding ‘Solar Energy Facilities’ to Sec. 2.2. 

Analysis and Recommendation 

CZC Staff Analysis –Staff comments/ suggested changes regarding the proposed text are located on 
the right-hand side of the amendment (see example). 

ADRIAN TOWNSHIP LENAWEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
SOLAR ORDINANCE 

An ordinance to amend Article VI of the Adrian Township Zoning Ordinance by adding Section 6.49 re-
garding large solar energy facilities (Solar Farms) within the Township; adding Section 6.50 regarding 
small solar energy facilities; and addition of associated definitions to Article 2. 

The Township of Adrian ordains: 

Section 1. Amendment to Article 6 

Article 6, Special Provisions, of the Adrian Township Zoning Ordinance is amended by adding Section 
6.49, Large Solar Energy Facility, as follows: 

6.49 Large Solar Energy Facility (Solar Farm) 

The purpose of this Section is to establish minimum requirements and regulations for the siting, in-
stallation, operation, repair, decommissioning, and removal of large solar energy facilities (hereafter 
referred to as Solar Farms), as defined in Section 2.2, while promoting the safe, effective, and effi-
cient use of such energy facilities as a conditional use in specified zoning districts. The following re-
quirements shall apply to all Solar Farms: 

A. Location. All Solar Farms are limited to the Agricultural (RA) and Industrial (M) districts. 

B. Regulations and design standards. All Solar Farms shall comply with the following minimum reg-
ulations and design standards. 

1. Design Standards 

a. Minimum Lot Size. No Solar Farm shall be erected on any Zoning Lot less than twenty 
(20) acres in size (as defined in Section 2.2). 

Commented [GB31]: Example. 

Commented [GB32]: The regulations regarding ‘small solar en-
ergy facilities’ are proposed as Sec. 5.13 later in the proposed 
amendment. The exact location of those regulations must be deter-
mined. 

Commented [GB33]: The term used throughout the Zoning Or-
dinance is ‘permitted principal special land use’, and commonly re-
ferred to as a ‘special land use’, rather than a ‘conditional use’. This 
reference should be altered, accordingly. 

Commented [GB34]: It is not clarified whether ‘solar farms’ are 
to be regulated as a ‘permitted principal special land use’ or a ‘per-
mitted principal special land use’. This needs to be decided, and the 
use should be added to the appropriate listing in the ‘Agricultural 
(RA)’ and ‘Industrial (M)’ districts (Secs. 4.6 and 4.14, respectively). 
Also, the code for the ‘Agricultural’ district is listed alternatively as 
‘RA’, ‘R-A’, and ‘AG’, throughout the ordinance. This should be 
standardized. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 19 



Page 2 CZ #19-06 
 

b. Maximum Height. The maximum height for a solar panel shall be four-teen (14) feet. 
The maximum height of a Power Switchyard (as defined in Section 2.2) shall not exceed 
the minimum height needed to tie into electric transmission lines. The height of all 
other buildings and accessory structures shall comply with the maximum building height 
requirements of the applicable zoning district in which the Solar Farm is located, as 
listed in Article 4. The height of required lightning rods attached to the Power 
Switchyard or Solar Farm related equipment shall not be subject to the foregoing height 
limitations. The height of lightning rods shall be limited to that height necessary to pro-
tect the Power Switchyard and Solar Farm equipment from lightning. 

c. Setbacks. Solar Farm facilities and related structures and components shall be set back a 
minimum of thirty feet (30) from all lot lines. In addition, Solar Farm solar arrays and 
other structures must be located at least three hundred (300) feet from the road right-
of-way along M-52; one hundred fifty (150) feet from the road right-of-way along all 
other roadways, public and private; and one hundred fifty (150) feet from any lot line 
adjacent to all existing Residential (R), Urban Residential (R-l), and Multiple Family Resi-
dential (R-2) District land and any lot line adjacent to an existing residence at the time 
the Solar Farm is granted conditional use approval, unless the zoning lot is comprised of 
a portion of the lot containing the residence. Additional setbacks may be required to 
mitigate noise and glare impacts, or to provide for designated road or utility corridors, 
as identified through the review process. 

d. Safety/Access 

(1) Security fencing shall be installed around the Solar Farm as follows: fencing to be a 
minimum of six (6) feet and a maximum of eight (8) feet in height; fencing to be lo-
cated inside the perimeter of screening, if any. Knox boxes and keys shall be pro-
vided at locked entrances for emergency personnel access. 

(2) Appropriate warning signage shall be placed at the entrance and perimeter of the 
Solar Farm. 

e. Noise. No component of any Solar Farm shall produce noise that exceeds any of the fol-
lowing limitations. Adequate setbacks shall be provided to comply with these limita-
tions. 

(1) Fifty (50) dBA, as measured at the property line of any adjacent Residential (R), Ur-
ban Residential (R-1), and Multiple-Family Residential (R2) District zoned land in ex-
istence at the time the Solar Farm is granted conditional use approval. 

(2) Forty-five (45) dBA, as measured at any neighboring residence in existence at the 
time the Solar Farm is granted conditional use approval, between the hours of nine 
p.m. and seven a.m. 

(3) Sixty (60) dBA, as measured at the lot lines of the project boundary. 

f. Visual Appearance 

(1) Solar Farm buildings and accessory structures shall, to the extent reasonably possi-
ble, use materials, colors, and textures that will blend the Solar Farm into the exist-
ing environment. 

(2) The perimeter of Solar Farm facilities shall also be screened and buffered by in-
stalled evergreen vegetative plantings whenever existing natural forest vegetation 
does not otherwise continuously obscure the Solar Farm's entire lot perimeter from 

Commented [GB35]: See the comment in the introductory par-
agraph for Sec. 6.49. 

Commented [GB36]: Compliance with all other requirements 
of Sec 5.4 (Fences, Walls and Screens) should also be required. 

Commented [GB37]: See the comment in the introductory par-
agraph for Sec. 6.49. 

Commented [GB38]: See the comment in the introductory par-
agraph for Sec. 6.49. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 20 



Page 3 CZ #19-06 
 

adjacent parcels, subject to the following requirements: 

(a) Unless screened and buffered at all times by natural forest vegetation having a 
substantially similar obscuring effect of an evergreen vegetative buffer installed 
pursuant to this Section, a continuous evergreen vegetative buffer shall be in-
stalled and maintained at all times at the perimeter of all Solar Farms. 

(b) The evergreen vegetative buffer shall be composed of evergreen trees or shrubs 
that at planting shall be a minimum of six (6) feet in height. The evergreen trees 
or shrubs shall be spaced no more than ten (10) feet apart on center (from the 
central trunk of one plant to the central trunk of the next plant). Within five (5) 
years of planting, required evergreen vegetative screening shall be no less than 
fifteen (15) feet tall. 

(c) Failure to continuously maintain the required evergreen vegetative buffer shall 
constitute a violation of this Ordinance and sufficient grounds for revocation of 
any conditional use permit previously granted. 

(d) An alternate screening method may be considered for approval by the Planning 
Commission as long as it has a substantially similar obscuring effect of an ever-
green buffer. 

(e) If the Solar Farm is not visible from any road and if the Solar Farm is not visible 
from any existing residence, the screening requirements may be modified at the 
discretion of the Planning Commission. 

(3) Lighting of the Solar Farm shall be limited to the minimum necessary, supplied with 
down lighting, and in no case shall any illumination from such lighting extend be-
yond the perimeter of the Solar Farm. A photometric study may be used to make 
this determination. 

(4) No Solar Farm shall produce glare that would constitute a nuisance to occupants of 
neighboring properties or to persons traveling neighboring roads. Upon written no-
tice from the Zoning Administrator, or such other person designated by the Town-
ship Board, to the owners of the Solar Farm that glare from the Solar Farm is causing 
a nuisance to occupants of neighboring property or to persons traveling neighboring 
roads, the owner of the Solar Farm shall have a reasonable time (not to exceed 6 
months) from the date of such notice to remediate such glare. 

g. Medium Voltage Cable. All medium voltage cable (as defined in Section 2.1) within the 
project boundary shall be installed underground, unless determined otherwise by the 
planning commission because of severe environmental constraints (e.g. wetlands, cliffs, 
hard bedrock), and except for Power Switchyards (as defined in Section 2.2) or area 
within a substation. All electrical interconnections and distribution components must 
comply with all applicable codes and public utility requirements. 

2. Local, State and Federal Permits. A Solar Farm shall be required to obtain all necessary per-
mits from the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality and any applicable municipal, 
county, state, or Federal permits. 

3. Agreements/Easements. If the Zoning Lot (as defined in Section 2.2) on which the project is 
proposed is to be leased, rather than owned, by the owner of the Solar Farm, all property 
within the project boundary must be included in a recorded easement(s), lease(s), or con-

Commented [GB39]: See the comment in the introductory par-
agraph for Sec. 6.49. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 21 



Page 4 CZ #19-06 
 

sent agreement(s) specifying the applicable uses for the duration of the project. All neces-
sary leases, easements, or other agreements between the owner of the Solar Farm and 
property owners must be in place prior to commencing construction, unless specified other-
wise by the conditional use permit. 

C. Permit Applications. An application for a special use permit to establish a Solar Farm must in-
clude a complete description of the project and documentation to sufficiently demonstrate that 
the requirements set forth in Section 6.49.B.1 will be met. Supporting documentation for ad-
dressing the review criteria of Section 6.49.D and Article 6 (special provisions) is also to be pro-
vided. The planning commission and township board may require any information reasonably 
necessary to determine compliance with this ordinance. The application must also be accompa-
nied by detailed site plans, drawn to scale and dimensioned and certified by a registered engi-
neer licensed in the State of Michigan, displaying the following information: 

1. All lot lines and dimensions, including a legal description of each lot or parcel comprising the 
Solar Farm. 

2. Names of owners of each lot or parcel within Adrian Township that is proposed to be within 
the Solar Farm. 

3. Vicinity map showing the location of all surrounding land uses. 

4. Location and height of all proposed Solar Array(s), buildings, structures, electrical tie lines 
and transmission lines, security fencing, and all above-ground structures and utilities associ-
ated with a Solar Farm 

5. Horizontal and vertical (elevation) to scale drawings with dimensions that show the location 
of the proposed solar array(s), buildings, structures, electrical tie lines and transmission 
lines, security fencing and all above ground structures and utilities on the property. 

6. Location of all existing and proposed overhead and underground electrical transmission or 
distribution lines within the Solar Farm and within1,000 feet of the outside perimeter of the 
Solar Farm. 

7. Proposed setbacks from the solar array(s) to all existing and proposed structures within the 
Solar Farm. 

8. Land elevations for the solar array(s) location and the relationship to the land elevations of 
all existing and proposed structures within the Solar Farm. 

9. Access driveways within and to the Solar Farm, together with a detailed narrative regarding 
dimensions, composition, and maintenance of each proposed driveway. All access drives 
shall be subject to Lenawee County Department of Transportation approval, and shall be 
planned so as to minimize the use of lands for that purpose. 

10. Planned security measures to prevent unauthorized trespass and access and to warn of po-
tential dangers during the construction, operation, removal, maintenance or repair of the 
Solar Farm. 

11. A written description of the maintenance program to be used for the solar array(s) and 
other components of the Solar Farm, including decommissioning and removal when deter-
mined by the Township to be obsolete, uneconomic, or abandoned. The description shall 
include maintenance schedules, types of maintenance to be performed, and decommission-
ing and removal procedures and schedules if the Solar Farm becomes obsolete, uneconomic 
or abandoned. 

Commented [GB310]: See the comment in the introductory 
paragraph for Sec. 6.49. 

Commented [GB311]: The correct name of the agency is the 
Lenawee County Road Commission. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 22 



Page 5 CZ #19-06 
 

12. A copy of the manufacturer's safety measures. 

13. Planned lighting protection measures. 

14. Additional detail(s) and information as required by the conditional use permit requirements 
of the Zoning Ordinance, or as required by the Planning Commission. 

It is preferred that any related special use permit applications for substations or new transmis-
sion lines be considered in conjunction with the special use permit application for the Solar 
Farm; however, if the details of those improvements are not available at the time of application 
for the Solar Farm, they may be considered later, through subsequent special use permit review. 
At a minimum, the intended route for connecting to the power grid and the alternative locations 
of any substation shall be disclosed with the application for the Solar Farm. 

Due to the complexity of Solar Farm projects, the Township may require a development agree-
ment or other appropriate instrument to address taxing, property assessment, de-commission-
ing bond, and other related issues not addressed by this Section. A development agreement 
may be required as a condition of the permit, and must be approved by the Township Board 
prior to commencing construction. 

D. Provisions for Special use permit review. In addition to the standards set forth for special use 
approval in Article 6, additional consideration shall be given to the following: 

1. Project Rationale. Project rationale, including estimated construction schedule, project life, 
phasing, and likely buyers or markets for the generated energy. 

2. Siting Considerations. Siting considerations, such as avoiding areas/locations with a high po-
tential for biological conflict such as areas of environmental concern, parks, trails, special 
management areas or important wildlife habitat or corridors; avoiding visual corridors that 
are prominent scenic viewsheds; avoiding areas of erodible slopes and soils, where concerns 
for water quality, land-slide, severe erosion, or high storm runoff potential have been identi-
fied; and, avoiding known sensitive historical, cultural or archeological resources. 

3. Wildlife Habitat Areas and Migration Patterns. Specifically include information on any use 
of the site by endangered or threatened species and whether the project is in a biologically 
significant area. If threatened or endangered species exist in the area, consultation with the 
Michigan Departments of Natural Resources and Environmental Quality will be necessary. 

4. Environmental Analysis. The planning commission may require an analysis of impacts to his-
toric, cultural and archaeological resources, soil erosion (water and wind), flora, and water 
quality and water supply in the area, when there is reason to believe that adverse impacts 
to such may occur. 

5. Hazardous Waste. As applicable, the application must include plans for the spill prevention, 
clean-up, and disposal of fuels, oils, and hazardous wastes. 

6. Transportation Plan for Construction and Operation Phases. Proof of an agreement with 
the Lenawee County Department of Transportation and the Michigan Department of Trans-
portation (if applicable) regarding any construction phase of the project is required. 

7. Public Safety. Identify and address any known or suspected potential hazards to adjacent 
properties, public roadways, communities, aviation, etc., that may be created by the project. 

8. Decommissioning Plan. Describe the decommissioning and final land reclamation plan to be 
followed after the anticipated useful life, or abandonment, or termination of the project, 

Commented [GB312]: See the comment in the introductory 
paragraph for Sec. 6.49. 

Commented [GB313]: See the comment in Sec. 6.49.C.9. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 23 



Page 6 CZ #19-06 
 

including evidence of proposed commitments with affected parties (i.e., Township, any les-
sor or property owner, etc.) that ensure proper final reclamation of the Solar Farm. Among 
other things, revegetation and road repair activities should be addressed in the plan. Under 
this plan, all structures and facilities shall be removed, including any structures below-grade, 
and removed offsite for disposal. No concrete, piping and other materials may be left in 
place. The ground must be restored to its original condition within 180 days. 

E. Application Escrow Account. An escrow account shall be deposited with the Township by 
the applicant when the applicant applies for a conditional use permit for a Solar Farm. The 
monetary amount deposited by the applicant in escrow with the Township shall be the 
amount estimated by the Township to cover all reasonable costs and expenses associated 
with the special use permit review and approval process, which costs shall include, but are 
not limited to, reasonable fees of the Township Attorney, Township Planner and Township 
Engineer, as well as costs for any reports or studies that are reasonably related to the zoning 
review process for the application. Such escrow amount shall be in addition to any filing or 
application fees established by resolution. At any point during the review process, the 
Township may require that the applicant place additional funds into escrow with the Town-
ship if the existing escrow amount deposited by the applicant is deemed insufficient by the 
Township. If the escrow account needs replenishing and the applicant refuses to do so 
promptly, the review process shall cease unless and until the applicant makes the required 
additional escrow deposit. 

F. Decommissioning Escrow Account. If a special use permit is approved pursuant to this sec-
tion, the Township shall require security in the form of a cash deposit, or surety bond ac-
ceptable to the Township, which will be furnished to the Township in order to ensure full 
compliance with this section and all conditions of approval. When determining the amount 
of each required security, the Township may also require an annual escalator or increase 
based on the Consumer Price Index (or the equivalent or its successor). Such financial guar-
antee shall be deposited or filed with the Township Clerk after a special use permit has been 
approved but before construction commences on the Solar Farm. At a minimum, the finan-
cial security shall be in an amount determined by the Township to be reasonably sufficient 
to restore the property to its previous condition prior to construction and operation of the 
Solar Farm. Such financial security shall be kept in full force and effect during the entire time 
that the Solar Farm exists or is in place, and such financial security shall be irrevocable and 
non-cancelable. 

G. Code Compliance. Construction of a Solar Farm shall comply with the National Electric 
Safety Code and any applicable State Building Codes as a condition of any special use permit 
under this section. 

H. Certified Solar Array Components. Components of a Solar Farm shall be approved by the 
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers ("IEEE"), Solar Rating and Certification Cor-
poration ("SRCC"), Electronic Testing Laboratories ("EIL"), or other similar certification or-
ganization acceptable to the Township. 

I. Solar Access. The Township makes no assurance of solar access other than the provisions 
contained within this Section. The applicant may provide evidence of covenants, easements, 
or similar documentation for abutting property owners providing access to solar energy for 
the operation of a Solar Farm. 

Section 2. Amendment to Article 5 

Commented [GB314]: See the comment in the introductory 
paragraph for Sec. 6.49. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 24 



Page 7 CZ #19-06 
 
Article 5, General Provisions, of the Adrian Township Zoning Ordinance is amended by adding Section 
5.13, Small Solar Energy Facility, as follows: 

Section 5.13- SMALL SOLAR ENERGY FACILITY. 

Notwithstanding other provisions of this Section of the Ordinance, Small Roof-Mounted or Ground 
Mounted Solar Energy Facilities shall be considered a permitted use in all zoning districts as an ac-
cessory to a principal use. A Small Solar Energy Facility (as defined in Section 2.2) shall be required to 
have appropriate building permits. 

A. All Small Solar Energy Facilities are subject to the following minimum requirements: 

1. A small solar energy facility shall provide power for the principal use and/or accessory use of 
the property on which the small solar energy facility is located and shall not be used for the 
generation of power for the sale of energy to other users, although this provision shall not 
be interpreted to prohibit the sale of excess power generated from time to time to the local 
utility company. 

2. A small solar energy facility connected to the utility grid shall provide written authorization 
from the local utility company to Adrian Township acknowledging and approving such con-
nection. 

3. A roof-mounted facility may be mounted on a principal building or accessory building. A roof 
mounted facility, whether mounted on the principal building or accessory building, may not 
exceed the maximum principal building height or accessory building height specified for the 
building type in the underlying zoning district. In no instance shall any part of the small solar 
energy facility extend beyond the edge of the roof. 

4. A ground mounted facility shall not exceed a height of fourteen (14) feet. 

5. The surface area of a ground mounted facility, regardless of the mounted angle, shall be cal-
culated as part of the overall lot coverage. 

6. A ground mounted facility or facility attached to an accessory building shall not be located 
within the required front yard setback. 

7. The minimum ground-mounted small solar energy facility setback distance from the prop-
erty lines shall be equivalent to the principal building setback of the underlying zoning dis-
trict. 

8. All mechanical equipment associated with and necessary for the operation of the small solar 
energy facility shall comply with the following: 

a. Mechanical equipment shall be screened from any adjacent property that is residentially 
zoned or used for residential purposes. The screen shall consist of shrubbery, trees, or 
other non-invasive plant species which provides a visual screen. At least fifty percent 
(50%) of plants must be evergreen. In lieu of a planting screen, a decorative fence meet-
ing the requirements of Section 4.12 and that is at least fifty per-cent (50%) opaque may 
be used. 

b. Mechanical equipment shall not be located within the minimum front yard setback of 
the underlying zoning district. 

c. Mechanical equipment for ground-mounted facilities shall comply with the setbacks 
specified for principal structures in the underlying zoning district. 

9. Solar panels shall be placed such that concentrated solar radiation or glare shall not be di-
rected onto nearby properties or roadways. 

Commented [GB315]: The preamble to the Ordinance states 
that regulations regarding ‘small solar energy facilities’ are pro-
posed as Sec. 6.50. The exact location of these regulations must be 
determined. LCPC staff suggests that Sec. 5.13 is the correct loca-
tion. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 25 



Page 8 CZ #19-06 
 

10. All power transmission lines from a ground mounted small solar energy facility to any build-
ing or other structure shall be located underground. 

11. A small solar energy facility shall not be used to display advertising, including signage, 
streamers, pennants, spinners, reflectors, ribbons, tinsel, balloons, flags, banners or similar 
materials. The manufacturers and equipment information, warning, or indication of owner-
ship shall be allowed on any equipment of the solar energy facility provided they comply 
with the prevailing sign regulations. 

12. The design of the small solar energy facility shall conform to applicable industry standards. A 
building/zoning permit shall be obtained prior to construction. In the case of a roof-
mounted facility, the existing roof structure and the weight of the facility shall be taken into 
consideration when applying for a small solar energy facility permit. 

All wiring shall comply with the applicable version of Michigan's construction codes. The lo-
cal utility provider shall be contacted to determine grid interconnection and net metering 
policies. The Applicant shall submit certificates of design compliance obtained by the equip-
ment manufacturer from a certifying organization and any such design shall be certified by 
an Engineer registered in the State of Michigan. 

13. The small solar energy facility shall comply with all applicable Township ordinances and 
codes so as to ensure the structural integrity of such facility. 

14. Before any construction can commence on any small solar energy facility the property 
owner must acknowledge that he/she is the responsible party for owning/leasing and main-
taining the solar energy facility. 

B. If a ground mounted small solar energy facility is removed, any earth disturbance as a result of 
the removal of the ground mounted facility shall be graded and reseeded. 

C. If a ground mounted small solar energy facility has been abandoned (meaning not having been 
in operation for a period of six (6) months) or is defective or is deemed to be unsafe by the 
Building Inspector, the facility shall be required to be repaired by the owner to meet federal, 
state and local safety standards, or be removed by the property owner within the time period 
allowed by the Building Inspector. If the owner falls to remove or repair the defective or aban-
doned small solar energy facility, the Township may pursue a legal action to have the facility re-
moved at the owner's expense. 

D. Solar Access. The Township makes no assurance of solar access other than the provisions con-
tained within this Section. The applicant may provide evidence of covenants, easements, or sim-
ilar documentation for abutting property owners providing access to solar energy for the opera-
tion of a solar energy facility. 

Section 3. Amendment to Article 2 

Article 2 of the Adrian Township Zoning Ordinance is amended by adding the following definitions to 
Section 2.2: 

Solar Energy Facility: An energy generating facility consisting of one or more solar panels and associ-
ated equipment including, but not limited to: 

A. Large Solar Energy Facility (Solar Farm). A Solar Farm is a utility-scale facility that converts sun-
light into electricity by photovoltaics (PV) or experimental solar technologies. Any ground-
mounted facility that covers more than 10,000 square feet is included in this definition. 

B. Small Solar Energy Facility. A small solar energy facility is accessory to a principal residential or 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 26 



Page 9 CZ #19-06 
 

small business use and converts sunlight into electricity by photovoltaics (PV) or experimental 
solar technologies. The sale and distribution of excess available energy shall be incidental and 
not the primary purpose of the facility. For ground-mounted facilities, the total area covered by 
solar arrays shall not exceed 10,000 square feet. 

C. Photovoltaics (PV). A technology that converts light directly into electricity. 

D. Power Switchyard. The structure needed to tie the solar energy facility to electric transmission 
lines. 

E. Medium Voltage Cable. 34.5 kV lines which provide electricity to homes. 

. . . 

Zoning Lot. Provided that the owner(s) of any number of contiguous lots, or contiguous portions of 
lots, may have as many of said contiguous lots, or contiguous portions of lots, considered as a single 
lot for the purpose of this Ordinance as he/she so elects, and in such case the outside perimeter of 
said group of lots or portions of lots shall constitute the front, rear, and side lot lines thereof. This 
definition shall apply only to the siting of a Solar Farm. 

Section 4. Severability 

If any section, subsection, subparagraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be 
deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

Section 5. Repeal 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed. 

CZC Staff Analysis – Staff has no issue with the aims of the proposed amendments. However, it ap-
pears that the public hearing took place several months ago on January 29, 2019 and the notice for the 
public hearing was published only 11 days prior to the meeting instead of the 15 days required by Sec. 
103(1) of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (MCL 125.3103(1)). Staff also has numerous comments/sug-
gestions regarding the proposed amendments. 

CZC Staff Recommendation – Based upon this analysis, staff ad-
vises the Planning Commission to recommend APPROVAL WITH 
COMMENTS of the proposed amendments regulating ‘solar energy 
facilities’ to the Adrian Township Board: 

 The Adrian Township Planning Commission should hold a 
new public hearing after considering the LCPC staff sugges-
tions. 

 

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 27 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 28 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 29 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 30 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 31 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 32 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 33 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 34 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 35 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 36 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 37 



This page is intentionally blank. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 38 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

PA 116 FARMLAND AGREEMENT | FA #19-17 

 Applicant(s): Norris J. Klump Living Trust 
8271 Ridgeville Road 
Blissfield, MI 49228 

 Meeting Date: June 20, 2019 

 Location: The subject property (ID #RG0-106-1675-00) is located in Section 6 of Riga Town-
ship (T8S-R5E) and fronts on Thompson Highway at the intersection with Hazzard 
Road (see Figure 1). 

 Request: The request is for the termination of Farmland Development Rights Agreement 
#46-16866A-123116 in its entirety prior to its expiration due to the farmland no 
longer being economically viable. The detailed explanation for the termination 
request provided by the applicant is: 

‘Trying to sell [the] property and prospective buyers are leery of the 
program. The property only includes min. acres of tillable land’. 

 Future Land Use: The Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the subject proper-
ties in an area recommended for ‘Intensive Agricultural’ uses (see Figure 2). 

 Staff Comments: The answer to Question #1 of the application contains an error which needs to 
be addressed: The applicant is listed as ‘Norris J. Klump’, but (1) a trust is identi-
fied in Question #14, (2) the deed states that the property is owned by the ‘Nor-
ris J. Klump Living Trust’, and (3) Riga Township sends the tax bill to ‘Norris 
Klump Farms, Inc., Norris J. Klump Living Trust’. Staff is unsure what the follow-
ing statement, provided as part of the answer to Question #15, means: ‘The 
property only includes min. acres of tillable land’. 

The 5-acre parcel appears to include a farmstead, including a residence with 
various barns and outbuildings, as well as farmland (see Figure 3b). The Le-
nawee County Planning Commission (LCPC) routinely recommends that resi-
dences be excluded from PA 116 agreements in order avoid the need for this 
type of request. Given the potential for the sale of the property, why was the 
farmstead not excluded from the Farmland Development Rights Agreement? 

The expiration date of Farmland Development Rights Agreement #46-16866A-
123116 was December 31, 2016, according to that document. Why does an ex-
pired agreement need to be terminated? 

Staff Advisement: Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Lenawee County Planning Commis-
sion to recommend DISAPPROVAL of the PA 116 application to the Riga Town-
ship Board. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the applicant. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 39 



Page 2 FA | #19-17 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 2 
County Future Land Use 

 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 40 



Page 3 FA | #19-17 
 

Figure 3a 
Aerial Photograph 

 

Figure 3b 
Aerial Photograph 

 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 41 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 42 



XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 43 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 44 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 45 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 46 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 47 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 48 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 49 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 50 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 51 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 52 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 53 



This page is intentionally blank. 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 54 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

PA 116 FARMLAND AGREEMENT | FA #19-18 

 Applicant(s): Lawrence W. Fisher and Kay C. Fisher Income Trust 
3371 Wellsville Highway 
Palmyra, MI 49268 

 Meeting Date: June 20, 2019 

 Location: The subject property (ID #PA0-113-4055-00) is located in Section 13 of Palmyra 
Township (T7S,R4E) and fronts on Rouget Road, between Grosvenor and Wells-
ville Highways (see Figure 1). 

 Description: The subject property has an area of approximately 78 acres and approximately 
71.4 acres are in cultivation for cash crops. Roughly 6.6 acres are accounted for 
in the ‘other’ category; the Pease Drain traverses the southern third of the parcel 
and the Colvin Drain traverses its northern third. What appears to be the farm-
stead originally associated with the subject property has been split off and no 
buildings are located on the site (see Figures 3a & 3b). 

 Term: 20 years is the proposed term. 

 Future Land Use: The Lenawee County Comprehensive Land Use Plan places the subject proper-
ties in an area recommended for ‘Intensive Agricultural’ uses (see Figure 2). 

 Staff Comments: The application contains various errors/omissions which need to be addressed: 

 Question #15: Kay C. Fisher was listed as a trustee but the position held 
by Lawrence W. Fisher was not included. 

Staff Advisement: Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Lenawee County Planning Commis-
sion to recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the PA 116 application to 
the Palmyra Township Board. 

Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by the applicant. 

 
  

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 55 



Page 2 FA | #19-18 
 

Figure 1 
Location 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 2 
County Future Land Use 

 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 56 



Page 3 FA | #19-18 
 

Figure 3a 
Aerial Photograph 

 

Figure 3b 
Aerial Photograph 

 
 

6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 57 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 58 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 59 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 60 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 61 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 62 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 63 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 64 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 65 



6/20/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 66 


	FA19-17report.pdf
	norris_klump_PA116termination201901.pdf
	Scan_20190517.pdf (p.1)
	Scan_20190517 (2).pdf (p.2)
	Scan_20190517 (3).pdf (p.3)
	Scan_20190517 (4).pdf (p.4)
	Scan_20190517 (5).pdf (p.5)
	Scan_20190517 (6).pdf (p.6)
	Scan_20190517 (7).pdf (p.7)
	Scan_20190517 (8).pdf (p.8)
	Scan_20190517 (9).pdf (p.9)
	Scan_20190517 (10).pdf (p.10)
	Scan_20190517 (11).pdf (p.11)
	Scan_20190517 (12).pdf (p.12)

	norris_klump_PA116termination201901.pdf
	Scan_20190517.pdf (p.1)
	Scan_20190517 (2).pdf (p.2)
	Scan_20190517 (3).pdf (p.3)
	Scan_20190517 (4).pdf (p.4)
	Scan_20190517 (5).pdf (p.5)
	Scan_20190517 (6).pdf (p.6)
	Scan_20190517 (7).pdf (p.7)
	Scan_20190517 (8).pdf (p.8)
	Scan_20190517 (9).pdf (p.9)
	Scan_20190517 (10).pdf (p.10)
	Scan_20190517 (11).pdf (p.11)
	Scan_20190517 (12).pdf (p.12)





